
Date Published:4 June 2021     

Constitution Committee

Monday 14 June 2021 at 2.00 pm

Please note that this meeting will be held remotely and can be viewed
on the County Council website at www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

AGENDA

1  ELECTION OF CHAIR 

To elect a Chair for this meeting only.

Sophie 
Benfield

2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Chair

3  FIRE & RESCUE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TERMS OF 
REFERENCE (Pages 1 - 2)

To consider the attached paper.

Rob Ayliffe

4  APPEALS COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE (Pages 3 - 6)

To consider the attached report.

Gillian 
Parkinson

5  MONITORING OFFICER CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION 
(Pages 7 - 14)

To note the following changes made to the Constitution under the 
Monitoring Officer’s delegated powers:

a) Cabinet Member Portfolios (paper attached – Annex A) 
b) Removal of Remote Meetings Protocol and Procedure Rules 

(paper attached – Annex B)

Rob Ayliffe

Membership –  Cllr John Bloxsom, Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE (Chair), Cllr Colin Hay, 
Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Paul Hodgkinson, Cllr Dr Andrew Miller, Cllr David Norman MBE, 
Cllr Philip Robinson and Cllr Lynden Stowe 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 



    

(Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the 
start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Terms of Reference for Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee

1. At the Annual General Meeting on 19 May 2021, the County Council agreed 
to establish a new scrutiny committee meeting of seven members for the Fire 
and Rescue Service.

2. The Constitution Committee is asked to consider the draft Terms of Reference 
below with a view to these being incorporated into Part 3, section 3.11 of the 
Council’s constitution

Recommendation

3. That the Constitution Committee recommends that the County Council adopts 
the Terms of Reference below for inclusion in Part 3, section 3.11 of the 
Council’s Constitution

Fire & Rescue Scrutiny 
Committee

7 County Councillors

To carry out the scrutiny functions of the County 
Council as set out in Article 8 of the Constitution in 
the context of matters relating to Gloucestershire 
Fire & Rescue Service, including:

- Response to fire and other emergencies
- Fire regulation, prevention and promoting fire 

safety
- Performance against Key and Local 

Performance Indicators 
- Progress against recommendations from 

inspections and delivery of the Improvement 
Plan

- Co-operation and partnership working with 
other local responders to enhance co-
ordination and efficiency and increase 
community resilience

- Cross-boundary co-operation with other Fire 
and Rescue Authorities 

- Civil contingency planning
- Leadership, culture and workforce 

development across the service.

Rob Ayliffe
Monitoring Officer

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE TERMS OF REFERENCE OF 
THE APPEALS COMMITTEE 

AGENDA NO:  

Meeting  14 June 2021 

Report author 
Gillian Parkinson 
Assistant Director, Legal Services (Gloucestershire County Council) 
Tel: 01452 328729 
Email:  gillian.parkinson@gloucestershire.gov 

Background 
documents 

 
Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Chief Executives National 
Salary Framework and Conditions of Service Handbook 
  

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents 

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Chf%20Exec%20Han
dbook%2013Oct16.pdf 

 

Main consultees None 

Planned dates 30 June 2021:  Recommendation to the County Council Meeting to adopt 
the changes to the Appeals Committee’s terms of reference. 

Purpose of report 
 

To propose changes to the County Council’s Constitution regarding the 
disciplinary appeal process for the Chief Executive, Statutory Officers and  
any other Chief Officer to whom the council’s employment related 
procedures expressly apply. 
 

Recommendations 
To recommend the County Council adopts the changes to the Appeals 
Committee’s Terms of reference as set out in the Appendix to this report. 

Reasons for 
recommendations 

To ensure the Council has the appropriate committee structure in place to 
be in a position to quickly consider any potential disciplinary issues for the 
Chief Executive, Statutory Officers and other Chief Officers. 

Resource 
Implications 

None 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Chf%20Exec%20Handbook%2013Oct16.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Chf%20Exec%20Handbook%2013Oct16.pdf


 
Background  
 

1. This paper sets out proposed changes to the Council’s Constitution to ensure the 
Council has the appropriate committees in place in order that potential disciplinary 
issues for the statutory officers (the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer and the 
Chief Financial Officer (the Section 151 Officer) can be quickly considered.  The 
JNC have issued a Model Disciplinary Procedure and Guidance in the JNC 
Conditions of Service Handbook (‘the Guidance’) regarding local authorities 
consideration of such issues.   
 

2. A review of our current Committee arrangements for such matters identified that an 
appeal by the Chief Executive against a disciplinary decision would be referred to 
the Audit and Governance Committee as a whole.  Whereas the Guidance 
recommends that an appeal should be considered by a committee or sub-committee 
of no more than five members.  

 

3. The Constitution already has an arrangement in place for considering disciplinary 
matters concerning the Council’s Chief Officers through referral to the Appeals 
Committee.  Therefore, it is proposed to amend the terms of reference for the 
Appeals Committee as follows: 

 

o To allow individual appeals brought by the Chief Executive, Section 151 
Officer, Monitoring Officer or any other Chief Officer to whom the council’s 
employment related procedures grant an express right of appeal to 
elected members and  

 
o For appeals for such officers to operate through a politically balanced sub-

committee comprising up to 5 members, none of whom must be a 
member of the Investigating and Disciplinary Panel and one of whom 
must be a member of the Cabinet.  

 

4. The proposed amendments to the Constitution are set out in the Appendix to this 
report in revision marking. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



Appendix  
Proposed amendments to the Appeals Committee Terms of Reference 

 
 

3.1 APPEALS COMMITTEE 

 

The role of the Appeals Committee is, in essence, to act as a forum for hearing and 

determining complaints by employees, pupils and other individuals and to make 

arrangements for the determination of certain appeals in accordance with the law and 

under the Council’s own grievance and other procedures.  The duties of the Appeals 

Committee are set out in Table 3.01. 

 

Table 3.01: The duties of the Appeals Committee 

 

1. Individual appeals brought by the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer, 

Monitoring Officer or any other Chief Officer to whom the council’s Directors 

reporting directly to the Chief Executive under the Council’s Managing 

Performance Improvement Procedure and any other employment related 

procedures grant an  that expressly provides for a right of appeal to elected 

members. 

2. The making of arrangements for the determination of admission appeals in 

accordance with Section 94(1) and (4) of and Schedule 24 to the School 

Standards and Framework Act 1998. 

3. The making of arrangements for the determination of appeals by Governing 

Bodies concerning children to whom Section 87 of the School Standards 

and Framework Act 1998 applies in accordance with Section 95(2) of and 

Schedule 25 to that Act. 

4. The making of arrangements for the review of decision to exclude pupils in 

accordance with Section 52 of the Education Act 2002 and regulations made 

thereunder. 

5. Appeals under Regulation 11 of the Access to Personal Files (Social 

Services) Regulations 1989. 

6. Appeal against the exercise of the Council’s functions as a Social Services 

Authority. 

7. Act as an independent appeal panel and assess appeals lodged by parents, 

guardians, carers and other professionals against the decision of the County 

Council to decline requests for transport. 

8. Subject to any other requirements of the Constitution, any other appeals 

(where a right of appeal exists either by law or where the Council has 

expressly determined there shall be a right of appeal) against executive or 

non-executive decisions made by or on behalf of the Council. 

 

Appeals Committee Membership: 

 

Page 5



15 County Councillors 

 

County Councillors shall have completed training approved by the Monitoring Officer 

before taking part in decisions by this Committee 

 

For appeals brought by the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer or 

other Chief Officer, as detailed at item 1 in Table 3.01 above, the Appeals Committee 

will operate through a politically balanced sub-committee comprising up to 5 members, 

none of whom must be a member of the Investigating and Disciplinary Panel  and one 

of whom must be a member of the Cabinet 

 

Note:  For the purpose of hearing appeals relating to home to school transport there 
shall be a panel of three members taken from the 15 trained members of the 
committee.  

 
 
 

Page 6



ANNEX A

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE

UPDATE TO CABINET PORTFOLIOS 

14 June 2021

1. Article 15.02.3 permits the Monitoring Officer is permitted to make changes to the 
Constitution in order to give effect to any decision of the full Council or Cabinet.  
Such changes must be reported to the Constitution Committee.

2. To that end, Constitution Committee is asked to note that Part 3, Section 4 of the 
Constitution has been updated to reflect the following Cabinet Portfolios that 
have been assigned by the Leader of the Council following his appointment at 
the Council’s Annual General Meeting on 19 May 2021.

4.4.1 Leader of the Council

1. Overall responsibility for the Council
2. Regional and national affairs
3. Accountable body status – Local Enterprise Partnership
4. Performance
5. Communications
6. Customer Experience

4.4.2 Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member - Finance and Change

1. MTFS, budget planning, monitoring and BSC
2. Support Services – including HR, legal, property, ICT, commercial, information 

management and traded services
3. Archives
4. Democratic Services
5. UBICO shareholder

4.4.3 Cabinet Member - Children’s Safeguarding and Early Years

1. Children’s safeguarding
2. Looked After Children/Care Leavers
3. Early help
4. Early years including children’s centres
5. Adoption and Fostering
6. Children with disabilities

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



ANNEX A

4.4.4 Cabinet Member - Environment and  Planning

1. Vision 2050 strategic housing, major infrastructure – including Local Transport Plan, 
highways development management and sub-regional partnerships

2. Air Quality and Air Quality Management Strategy
3. Climate change  – including green transport, Electric Vehicle Strategy, Carbon 

Reduction Strategy, flood resilience, sustainable procurement and green energy
4. Minerals and Waste Planning and Planning Authority liaison – duty to co-operate
5. Waste Disposal, waste reduction and recycling, including energy from waste

4.4.5 Cabinet Member - Highways and Flood

1. Highways maintenance and investment
2. Traffic manager
3. Streetworks
4. Highways Asset Management Plan
5. Public Rights of Way
6. Flooding protection works

4.4.6 Cabinet Member - Public Health and Communities

1. Public Health
2. Communities and Asset Based Community Development
3. Welfare reform
4. Travellers
5. Parish and Town Councils
6. Advice and information

4.4.7 Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care Commissioning

1. Commissioning including joint commissioning
2. Adult Single Programme
3. Demand management
4. Services for vulnerable people
5. Integrated Care System Lead

4.4.8 Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care Delivery

1. GCC-provided services
2. Adult safeguarding
3. Operational services for Learning Disabilities and Physical Disabilities
4. Mental Health

Page 8



ANNEX A

5. Transitions
6. Adults living in vulnerable circumstances
7. Reablement
8. Residential and Nursing Care
9. Dementia
10. Carers
11. Domiciliary Care
12. Domestic Abuse

4.4.9 Cabinet Member - Economy, Education and Skills

1. Economic growth
2.  Superfast broadband
3.  Industrial strategy
4.  Post 16 education, skills and apprenticeships
5.  Strategic oversight of education
6.  School funding
7.  School improvement/access and place planning
8.  Special educational needs
9.  Public, community and home to school transport

4.4.10 Cabinet Member - Public Protection, Parking and Libraries

1. Fire and Rescue Service
2. Civil Contingencies
3. PCC relationship
4. Trading Standards
5. Coroners Service
6. Road Safety
7. Parking and TROs
8. Libraries and Registration
9. Corporate Health and Safety

Rob Ayliffe
Monitoring Officer

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX B

Executive Decision Making by an Officer with Delegated Powers

Decision to be taken by: Rob Ayliffe, Monitoring Officer

Pursuant to delegation reference MO2 within the Council’s Scheme of Delegation

Report title:  Removal of Remote Meetings Protocol and Procedure Rules from the 
Gloucestershire County Council Constitution 

The decision To delete from Part 5 of the Council’s constitution the Remote 
Meetings Protocol and Procedure Rules

Background 
Documents

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/392/contents 

Reasons for 
the decision

The above regulations made provision for Local Authority meetings 
held before 7 May 2021 to be held remotely via video conference.  
The Remote Meetings Protocol and Procedure Rules incorporated 
that provision into the Council’s constitution.  As the regulations do 
not apply to meetings taking place on or after 7 May, it is 
necessary to remove this section of the constitution in order to 
ensure that meetings remain compliant with the law.. 

Resource
implications

The current requirement to maintain social distancing will continue 
to limit the capacity of council buildings to host Council and 
Committee meetings.  Until those requirements are relaxed, the 
Council will need to continue hire external venues for meetings of 
the full County Council and other larger committees.  This will incur 
additional cost as a result of having to hire venues and audio-visual 
equipment and support.

Who has been 
consulted? Not Applicable

What were their comments?

Not applicable

Page 11

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/392/contents


ANNEX B

Background/Context

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 were 
introduced by the Government in order to allow council meetings to take place remotely 
during the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Remote Meetings Protocol and Procedure Rules translated those regulations into the 
constitution, allowing the Council and its committees to conduct all meetings by video 
conference. 

However, those provisions ceased to have effect from 7 May 2021.  A Judgement by the High 
Court on 28 April 2021 ([2021] EWHC 1093 (Admin)) has ruled that further primary legislation 
would be required to allow local authority "meetings" under the 1972 Act to take place 
remotely. 

As the law makes no provision for remote meetings to continue, the Remote Meetings 
Protocol and Procedure Rules no longer provide a lawful means of conducting council 
business, so are being deleted from the Council’s constitution.

Alternative options considered and why they were rejected
Not applicable

Risk Analysis
In order to allow ‘in person’ meetings to resume safely, council meetings will take place in 
venues that are big enough to accommodate social distancing, which are compliant with 
COVID 19 guidance and which have been subject to thorough risk assessment.

Page 12



ANNEX B

Equalities considerations
It is recognised that certain groups are more vulnerable to COVID-19, and therefore may be 
placed at more risk by a return to ‘in person’ meetings.  For example, older people, those with 
certain underlying health conditions and people from some black, Asian and other minority 
ethnic groups are at greater risk of becoming seriously ill.  Conversely, younger people are 
less likely to have received a vaccination, and therefore are more likely to contract COVID 19 
as a result of exposure to the virus.

For these reasons, efforts will be taken to ensure robust COVID compliance for all council 
and committee meetings.

Where technologically and operationally possible, officers will be able to continue to connect 
to council meetings remotely.

Has a Due Regard Statement been completed? No

 Has any conflict of interest been declared 
by any Cabinet Member consulted on the 
decision?

If any conflict of interest declared, was a 
dispensation granted by the Audit and 
Governance Committee of the Council?

No

Date of dispensation: N/A

Does this decision report form or any 
supporting papers provided contain 
confidential or exempt information?  

No

Does this decision need to be published on 
the GCC website?

Yes

Page 13



ANNEX B

In coming to this decision I have given due and full regard to the requirements of the Public 
Sector Equality Duty contained in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”) by 
reference to the law itself and also the relevant Due Regard Statement, which 
was/were prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Act. 

Having fully considered all available information, I have decided to reject any alternative 
options and take the recommended decision(s), for the reasons set out in this report. 

Rob Ayliffe, Monitoring Officer

21 May 2021

Contact details for further information:

Officer: Rob Ayliffe

Tel: 01452 328506

Email: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 Fire & Rescue Scrutiny Committee Terms of Reference
	4 Appeals Committee Terms of Reference
	5 Monitoring Officer Changes to the Constitution
	MO Decision report - Removal of Remote Meetings Protocol and Procedure Rules


